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Chairman

It is with great pleasure that we present the second issue of THE BRIDGE magazine. After
a successful launch in August we have received, with appreciation, a good deal of feedback,
ranging from the very positive to the slightly critical. We have taken note of all comments and
have incorporated suggestions into what is now a more readable product with three clearly
distinct sections. Enjoy your reading!

Dear Readers,

In September SwissCham China had the honor and privilege to represent Switzerland at the
Summit of the World Industrial and Commercial Organization in Beijing. This conference was
hosted by the China Federation of Industrial Economics (CFIE) and organized by the United
Nations Industrial Development Organization (UNIDO) and CFIE. In his opening address Vice
Premier Huang Ju stressed the important role played by the chambers in creating "an essential
link and bridge between government and businesses." He further stated that they have "an
increasingly important role to play in promoting global economic growth."

In separate talks with Xu Kuangdi, Chairman of the Summit and well known former Mayor of
Shanghai, as well as with other Chinese dignitaries, we felt that the work of the chambers in
China is well received. We believe that we have come closer to resolving long-standing issues
such as the lifting of legal barriers for chamber organizations outside of Beijing and other related
topics.

September and October are normally the busiest months for receiving guests from Switzerland
and it was therefore no surprise that we had a string of important visits from Swiss government,
culture and business representatives. The Minister of Home Affairs & Federal Councilor, Pascal
Couchepin, came to attend a multilateral meeting which gathered thirty-two ministers responsible
for culture. State Councilor Lamprecht led a large delegation from Geneva, promoting their state
to potential Chinese investors. The Basel Symphony Orchestra and the Basel Ballet mounted
world class performances in Beijing and Shanghai. We have also celebrated the official openings
or extension of facilities of our members: Sarnafil, Leister, KUK, Endress & Hauser, and
Givaudan. Best wishes to all of them!
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translation in this issue.
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THE BRIDGE is a quarterly publication. Editorial and
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reflect the views of the Board, the members or the staff
of SwissCham China.
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INTERVIEW %5

HANS ROTH

Swiss Consul General in Shanghai

TR REE
It LSS

THE BRIDGE: Do you see any unsolved problems in the Sino-
Swiss relationship? Which one has the biggest impact?

What is the impact of China’s WTO regulations for Swiss
companies?

B: HBAARPRR EEFEAFRRIEEG? AR
X ERMmEK?

REMAE R RS AR D ES IR ARBARNE?

Once China, Always China:
Hans Jakob Roth is the Swiss Consul
General in Shanghai. His first contact
with China was 1978, while he was a
student of Beijing University for two
years. After stations in London and
Tokyo for the Swiss Foreign Ministry
he entered China again in 1990 as First
Secretary and then Counsellor in the
Swiss embassy in Beijing until 1995.
Attractive Jobs like Head of the Foreign
Ministry UNESCO and Culture section
could not keep him in Switzerland.
Since 2001 he is the Swiss Consul
General in Shanghai and back again
once more.
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INTERVIEW %i5:

HANS ROTH

Swiss Consul General in Shanghai

ImtH FEEHNS

THE BRIDGE: How is China’s profile in the
Swiss media?

Mr. Roth: | think there is a very strong interest in
China, in particular Shanghai. Events like the F1
have a considerable impact on the public at home
and draw attention to developments in the region.

What are the Chinese doing in Switzerland to
raise their profile? What is collaboration with
them like in Switzerland?

China has done a lot to introduce the country to
the Swiss population in the tourist field. | am happy
that we have a counterpart now in Chinese tourists
visiting Switzerland. Cooperation with our Chinese
colleagues both at the Embassy in Bern and the
Consulate General in Zurich is excellent.

The Chinese are becoming more mobile these
days. Do you recognize a significant change in
Chinese interest in visiting Switzerland?

Since the Chinese government opened the Swiss
tourism market to tourist groups with the new ADS
agreement, the numbers of visitors to Switzerland
has indeed increased considerably.

Which kind of trouble do the Swiss sometimes
face after arriving in China? In which cases do
you have to intervene?

We rarely have any trouble with Swiss people
coming to China. There are some petty thefts,
but | think that in nearly every European country,
including Switzerland, the issue of security is more
troublesome than in China. Of course, there are
differences in the level of safety in different cities in
China, but as far as foreigners are concerned, the
country can be considered very safe.

How many Swiss people live in China at moment?

In the Consular region alone, there are already
more than 350 people. The Swiss community
in the Shanghai region grows by a hefty 10%
every year, about two thirds through the arrival of
newcomers, and one third by births — newcomers
of a different kind. What | also see is a growing
trend of marriages, to some extent even due to
some inventive business activities that seem to be
growing in this particular field.
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| |
Source: Art on Food & Ice AG

What are the major events you are planning for
the near future?

After setting the pace with our architectural
exposition at the Bund Centre, opened by our
president in November 2003, we are preparing a
major campaign in the field of design and fashion
— mainly high- end fashion textiles — for the year
2005.

Interview: Martin Regnet &1 £ X
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Chlnese Frmtcarver becomes
successful in Switzerland

Mr. Wang Xiang, the head teacher at Art on Food, has won numerous gold medals, in addition to twice
winning the title of World Champion in international cooking exhibitions and events. Probably the most
successful vegetable and fruit carver worldwide, he is famous for various TV shows and books, as well
as his outstanding art performance. Art on Food & Ice AG has published, together with Mr. Wang and his
skilful hands, 4 professional fruit and vegetable carving books, which are sold successfully everywhere
in the world. Students from all over the world come to Udligenswil in Switzerland to learn from the Master
himself. Furthermore, Mr. Wang travels and conducts courses virtually all over Europe. Mr. Wang, who
is a passionate opera singer, enjoys good Swiss food and the Swiss lifestyle, as well as driving fast on
German high-ways. (For further details see www.artonfood.com) Text: Andy Mannhart

EFMmikE, ERIZERNEK, 28R RERZIEEHRBE, EEARSEMEVLEENER,
AXRMEHEZIHNBEATEMBERZNL, EEHEBENEZ, HEEISRSERAERIHREMRZT
FKZ—, Art on Food & Ice AGEEXREEE, HRTAAREWHIZREMINPHGHETk, HRSi
MZEERZFRI TR I Udigenswil I RIFZEIHE, NTEELEIESHIREBHEM, EEERRT
TR, FEEZHINAFRARRER, FEERESEAE EBEFCIARE,

(E&EFMf, ESEwww.artonfood.com ) ¥ Andy Mannhart
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Events Review B4 &5

August 1, 2004, 1 i
Sino Swiss Hotel, Beijing: fs / 1
Swiss National Day celebration
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September, 19 2004: Beijing, SwissCham
China participates at the World Industrial
and Commercial Organizations Summit;

Photo: (left to right: SwissCham Beijing
Executive Director Fabian Furrer,
SwissCham China Chairman Christian
Guertler, the Chairman of summit Xu
Kuangdi and SwissCham China Vice-
Chairman Cyrill Eltschinger)

200459198 FEBKTAS(IEFIEST
HRAIFHEES,

RENEEZEREHRR AL THRTESHITE
BER, P ERTHSEFEREREE ZE
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Source: WICO ( see article on page23 )
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September 22, 2004, China World Hotel
SwissCham Beijing: “Swiss Ambassador
Dreyer Farewell Dinner”

Photo: Ambassador Dreyer and SwissCham
China’s Vice Chairman Cyrill Eltschinger

20045F9A 220, PERTHESEREKIRE
#4177 “EetXHEDreyerff ZRIBE, ”
RE: X{fEDreyer5HEH T HASBIEFIR
RETERENER,

Source: Metropolis, Robert Holst

ZK[E FMetropolisFlRobert Holsti2 it

)7 October 2 to October 7, 2004: Symphony Orchestra Basel
(Switzerland) has a concert tour in China in Beijing, Suzhou and
Shanghai’s Grand Theatre

)7 Sep. 8, 2004, Portman Ritz-Carlton Shanghai
Geneva Delegation Conference

20045F9A8H, B A REFKEALEIN
B EmEEE

Mr. Carlo Lamprecht
State Councillor, Minister of Economice Affairs
MIXG, ZEFESE B

2004510A2HZ10A7H, BEERTMEAAEFERILTE. HHF
LiBXRIRKE,

SwissCham Shanghai:

April 23, 2004 (2004F4H23H ) at
Renaissance, Yangtze Shanghai Hotel
LB FIKEBNE

Joint-chamber dinner seminar on the topic of
“General Planning of Shanghai World Expo
2010 and Business Opportunities to Foreign
Companies”

HABSME: “20104 LigtHHS 84k

A5 2. 51 £ o 7 I ) 7 e 324"
Preparation: Strategies & Concepts

I I B wew ch-na.com
= Ressarch, Conoepts & Scenarios, Business & Action Plans

+ Executive Visits: meet representative stakeholders for a direct feel and hands-on ressarch
* Financing & Funding Solutions

Professor Zhou Hanmin
Deputy Director General,
Bureau of Shanghai World Expo

ARE #iF,
LiBtrESESHIER BIEK

Implementation: Project Management

Duwe Diligence, Partner Audits, Document Preparation and Legal Incorporation
Human Resources Search, Assessment & Selection, Employment Contracts
Technodogy Transfer, [P Protection and Key Staff Training

Sales, Marketing & Distribution, Network Structure; search & selection
Budgeting, Accounting, Reporting, Controlling & 1T systems set-up

Factory and Office Installation: eguiprment selection, purchasing, interior design

@ B & ® ¥ =B

Operations: Management Support

= Management Coaching and Supervision

* Management Information Systems Support: internal reporting forecasting & controlling,
Tax optimization, customized ERP systems & automation of reporting, ERP system &
network malnbenance

= Strategic Management & Board Membership

L

Your Success: CH-ina Experts with unique Experience
* Team of 20 project managers and consultants led by one Chinese and two Swiss partners
combining 30 years of experience in starting and running businesses in China
= Morae than 45 Swiss companies successfully served in 3 years, including 9 complete factory
set-ups and 30 local managers hired

Integrated China Entry Solutions and Operations



Oct. 21 2004,Joint Chamber Event with the Shanghai Foreign Economic Relations
& Trade Commission. 20045104218, BABaEMLBHMNIIZHESERABE

Cooperate with

Shanghai Municipal People’s Government / Foreign Economic Relations & Trade Commission / Europe Businesss Department
A LiEmIIEFABERSEME KR

Speech Title: Changes in Government Policy & Overall Environment for Foreign Investment: Expectation for Shanghai 2005
RHER: SNERABRR RN E-- LiB2005RE

Speaker: Mr. Pan Longqing

WikE: BRBEE

Huht: EiEiEREFREBER KA Venue: Pudong Shangri-la,

' from left to right
WEER
Mr. Pan Longqing, & &5 54
Mr. Ren Zhanbing, fE&3 %4
Mrs.Birgit Murr &=+

>

Chamber presidents and top
management with Mr. Pan Longqing,
SEIBEREREEEMBELBFRE

| Left £&
~ Mr.Ren Zhanbing,
President of SwissCham Shanghai
EH¥HF EE
hERTHS LBSS £

Right A&

Mr. Christian Guertler
Chairman SwissCham China
R S

PERIES £F

from left to right
NEEHR

Mr. Pan Longging
ERFE L,

Mr. Zhao Feng

BB £

Ms. Claire Chen
HEIE N,

Mr. Christian Guertler
BAER SEE

Left Z£: Ms. Claire Chen BR&IZE /\iH
Executive Director of SwissCham Shanghai

FERITESLEESS HITREK Mr. Christian Guertler

Mr. Ren Zhanbing Mr. Pan Longqing

Right &7 : Mr. Pan Longqing &&i& %4 EE¥H £, ERTE TE, B4R B4
Chairman Shanghai Foreign Economic Relations &  President of Chairman Chairman
Trade Commission SwissCham Shanghai Shanghai Foreign Economic  SwissCham China
LWL FRASERS FE hERTES Relations & Trade hERITES £E
tigns B Commission
LiEHmIMNEFRRABERS
FE

- [

. '|':'.T""-u: “:- i Li -~ % . l.

iy e . e

Left Z£: Mr. Martin Regnet X 5t4
Project Manager of SwissCham Shanghai
HERTHS LB S TEZE

Right &: Ms. Claire Chen E&&IZ /R
Executive Director of SwissCham Shanghai
HERTHS LESS MITRE

Looking forward to next time!!l Hif3E W&

Source: Karin Wiedenhoefer. 7% [&] B Karin Wiedenhoeferf2fi
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Farewell to

Ambassador
Dreyer'

@&, DreyerXk{E

Dominique Dreyer leaves China after 5 successful years
as Swiss Ambassador

Ambassador Dreyer’s links to China are deep-rooted, as he has
been assigned here three times. From 1974 to 1978 he acted as
Second Secretary, while from 1984 to 1988 he was Counsellor.
In 1995 he was appointed Minister and then, in January 1999,
he received the appointment of Ambassador. He has witnessed
China’s evolution, from the final years of the “Cultural Revolution”
to the spectacular developments of today, from the inside. It can
well be said that this evolution has been one of the most significant
in world history.

Over the last five years, relations between Switzerland and
China have seen great progress. In March 1999, President Jiang
Zemin was the first Chinese Head of State to visit Switzerland
on a state visit. In the year 2000, the President of the Swiss
Confederation, Adolf Ogi, and the then Deputy Premier, Wen
Jiabao, attended the official ceremony for the celebration of the
50th anniversary of Swiss-Chinese diplomatic relations. Economic
exchange has expanded greatly, as have cultural and personal
exchanges between the two countries. President Couchepin’s
official visit in November 2003 was further proof of the importance
accorded to relations with China by the highest Swiss authorities.
The growth of Chinese tourism in Switzerland will be furthered by
the signing this year of the ADS agreement (see cover story).

Leaving China after so many hectic and interesting years,
Ambassador Dreyer feels some nostalgia for the country where he
leaves many friends and where he has spent so much time. He also
has a feeling of gratitude for the Swiss community in China for the
help and support given to the Embassy and to himself. Ambassador
Dreyer is confident that Sino-Swiss relations will continue to
undergo steady development in the years to come, thanks in no
small part to the effort and devotion of Swiss compatriots in China.

swisscham china thanks Ambassador Dreyer for his
excellent contribution to Sino-Swiss relations and wishes him
further success in his new assignment as Swiss Ambassador in
New Delhi, India.

Ambassador Dreyer on his farewell visit to the
Minister of Foreign Affairs, Mr Li Zhaoxing,
October, 20.
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Source: Foreign Ministry.
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Imports of
counterfeited/pirated goods
to Switzerland:

A non-lucrative business
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Congratulations! You have never bought any counterfeit goods or pirated
copies in China and have never tried to bring them back to Switzerland. If
so, this article may be of little interest to you. For those who have bought
and considered importing such goods, however, this article is a must read
as we will present you with an overview of the current legal situation in
Switzerland. From now on, you can only blame yourself for being caught
the next time you fly to Switzerland!

You checked your luggage and have passed through Chinese customs en
route to Switzerland. You are now about to land in

Paris, or Frankfurt (unfortunately, Swiss Airlines will “Smal’ Souvenirs
may suddenly
become more
expensive
INE A mt T
SRATBHHRE 7

most probably not have reintroduced direct flights from
Mainland China to Switzerland by the time of publication
of this article), before embarking for Switzerland. As
usual, your checked and/or your carry-on luggage
contain the latest pirated DVDs, fake fashion clothes
and counterfeit watches. You may, perhaps, be wearing
a fake winter jacket, although it is still summer. It never
really bothered you to purchase such goods while in
China but now, as you buckle up for landing, you start
to feel a little nervous.

It is, perhaps, still too early to really worry. Within the transit zone, although
French law applies, customs authorities may examine your hand or checked
luggage for security reasons but will usually not report the discovery of
counterfeit goods. You may be wise, however, not to provoke French customs
authorities by flaunting your fake, flashy ‘haute couture’ T-shirt purchased (after
bargaining) for a mere 10 RMB. However, if you decide to stopover in Paris for a
few days to visit the Eiffel Tower, you may deeply regret it. According to French
customs rules and national law, a traveler carrying fake goods in his luggage
or wearing such goods risks the same penalty as the counterfeiter himself:
seizure, a customs fine of one or two times the value of the genuine good, a
criminal fine of up to 300,000 Euros and imprisonment for up to three years.
The small souvenir bought at Xiang Yang market has suddenly become a little
more expensive!

Lake Leman, or Lake Zurich, is in sight and you start to wonder why on earth
you ever asked your friends if they wanted something special from China. You
try to keep your composure and appear as relaxed and detached as a Swiss
cow grazing in the Alps. Those six counterfeit “Swiss” watches and the latest
pirated Spiderman movie (you never watched it and hate this kind of movie
anyway) begin to make you sweat. All of your bags are on the trolley and you
are now just meters away from “home sweet home” when a Swiss customs
official politely invites you to open your luggage.
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RAERERXERYEORE LT, BARERE, XEX
EXMEHMELTE “NME” . WREBEIIHE
Ry THRR L, BEEESBRE—TEX,
ESEIFER T HARERER, MR TREERL
BEIRG, MABBCSRKERET,

ME—, ERIETITE, BETHEEXNRSE,
BETERINRE, FTEEEEERNEEZZR
BEN (RAE, EEAXERZE, PENMITETEERE
KEETHIMIE) , REBE
W, EHREITESREFIR
ITERERIERDVD, &
ENRBMRENFRESE, &
BRI E RN ESRATE
— - ENE ST EN, &
FE, ETUNEREINE
BliXEERT, RMRE, &
EEMNEN, BABREIE

HIF IR E K RIEE A AR
TR, aEERKN, REESANIXEXE, 88X
LEMTREH FREEE, MEFEHWFIRSIEIET
Zx=, BEEEATASBRUELZANMNEY K. HiF
IBIREERE, ASEAKEMLEEI10T, ENHEHFHE
YA R L T T-shintf & REEgE, 4,
MBHEREEEREEZILER, SWRIEREGKE, &
RS ARMEETS . BARBEEEXEGME
7, IRKEEERTEhETHEFRMETR,
ZREHZESHhEE—FOLE, B RKHiED
W, HiEXAUER—E@RENTR, BdEZ3
514300, OOOBKTTHIFIE I HRFN=FEMNERZ R, X
H—k, EEATHMIN M ERBESTEBTHE

BT

EEMH R MMAERET, EHFEIEEB S ZTi%
EEMPA AR R EEH T —EhENET, HlER
e, HENERCHELEG—REMRERLLE
RENRTHE-HRERIES. BeNIEN “I
17 FRMFFAOBR CHERERD) (ENRF LT
REWEES ) FRILERIHEE, EREFHITER
EFEEL, BEN “HERE" WNEILSZE,
MEELNRETEXE RRELFBEREITHEN

4

swisscham china /19 ‘



Swiss law makes a clear distinction between imports of small
quantities of commercial goods (for resale purposes) and those of
a private nature (on the basis of the so called de minimis rule). The
former activity is strictly prohibited and subject to the confiscation
of goods, a heavy fine (up to CHF 100,000) and/or imprisonment
and compensation for damages. If you think that the customs
authorities and holders of copyrights are not serious be aware that
five tones of counterfeited “Swiss” watches, confiscated over the
last years, were destroyed this past summer.

Swiss trademark laws and regulations do not, however,
encompass the imports of counterfeit goods for private use.
Unlike French legislation, Swiss legislation does not treat
ownership of a private nature and the manufacturing of
counterfeited goods on an equal footing.

How is “private use” meant to be interpreted? No law or regulation
defines the expression. The individual customs officer has the
discretionary power to differentiate private from commercial use,
subject to judicial review. Customs authorities will first look at the
number of counterfeited items. In this respect it seems that, in
practice, customs authorities may turn a blind eye to imports of a
single counterfeit watch or leather item or even a few counterfeit
T-shirts. However, it is important to stress that each assessment
is done on a case-by-case basis with the number of items being
just one of several factors. So be aware of false assumptions. The
customs authorities or a court (and not you) must believe that the
counterfeit or pirated goods will not be put back into the market
(i.e. sold to third parties). If you are caught importing ten identical
T-shirts (or DVDs), for instance, there is little doubt that they will
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be confiscated. The same outcome can be expected for imports
of typically ladies/men’s items by someone of the opposite sex. In
both cases, it will be virtually impossible to convince the customs
authorities that the infringing goods are strictly and exclusively for
private use.

You may not want to put a customs agent to the test and try to
justify the import of your entire pirated DVD “private” collection, or
pretend to be a fake watch collector with respect to the 100 (each
one different) counterfeited watches you have acquired. Remember
that, if caught, you will be subject to criminal and civil charges and
will be ordered before a court. This being said, it will rarely be worth
the hassle to challenge the decision made by customs.
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This article does not constitute legal advice or recommendation
and should not be used as such.
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Article 60 WTO/TRIPS Agreement

WTO/TRIPSt#iY ££605

2R AR O

De Minimis Imports

[WTO] Members may [editor’s note: no obligation
whatsoever] exclude from the application of the above
provisions small quantities of goods of a non-commercial
nature contained in travelers’ personal luggage or sent in
small consignments.
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The Chinese Traveller’s
Head turns West

The Chinese desire to see more than their

everyday environment appears to be growing.

With CCTV’s popular tourism programs and

lifestyle magazines promoting the first wave

of domestic and inbound tourism, the second
wave, outbound tourlsm is not far behlnd




d i

WIRININEA Y

Switzerland, having received Approved Destination Status (ADS) on September 1%t
of this year, is becoming a destination of interest. There will be tough competition
among European travel companies for Chinese clients, both for complete packages
and tailor-made solutions.

China has already seen a boom in low-cost travel to Southeast Asia, but recently
there is a very much present desire to travel countries like Switzerland. Now, it will
be the Europeans’ turn to experience yet another feature of China’s international
presence: the growing demand for outbound travel with China’s entry into the World
Trade Organization. Average annual travel growth rates of 12.5 % until 2020 and up
to 100 million travellers annually are forecasted by the WTO, proof that China has a
large demand for outbound tourism, which is increasing at a rate 3 times higher than
the world average. A desire to visit Switzerland is very much present. According to
Andreas Kriesi, Chief Representative of Fert Ltd., annual growth rates of 20 to 30%
for Chinese outbound tourists to Switzerland are possible.

Chinese outbound travellers are looking forward to visiting faraway Europe. In the
same way that for most Westerners the East is a mysterious continent, to the Chinese,
the true meaning of “seeing the world” is to go to the distant West. Once Europe is
open, there will be a boom in the market. Difference plays an important role in the
choice of destination. The more different from China the destination is, the more
attractive it is to Chinese eyes. The search for difference triggers Chinese travel: the
culture, art, - cities, architecture,
scenery H’gh grOWth rates and customs of the
people in Europe are very

different make tourism an from those of China,

thus are highly appreciated by

the Chinese. attractive market For many Chinese

travellers, — a visit to Switzerland
its one s_lt_ige T-F*ﬁ H(] %Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ of the”ir Europt?an
our. ey generally  combine
their trip EE‘"&%I j] to Switzerland with
visits to neighbouring

countries, especially when they are first-time tourists. At present, Chinese tourists go
mainly to France, Italy, Germany and Switzerland in Western or Southern Europe.
They are interested in the rich Renaissance culture, art and architecture in Italy and
France; the natural scenery in Switzerland (snowy mountains and green land) and the
castles and old towns in Germany. Most trips include several of these countries. The
variety of visitors from China ranges from intellectuals, attracted by arts and historic
sites, to rich people, who have already seen most of Southeast Asia, to mass tourists
who have saved their money to fulfil the dream of a lifetime.

SHEIR1H, WmTiEd T PEGRHE BB E A A TIEX R A RE HIERFERZ
—o BMIMBIRIFARARFTHETHMRERFNZTEHEEHI . EhaFRME—FL
EERSFNESERNITRETH.

AR EBILRES ZERERE—F, EEHAMTEEVAZEELXENE
REFE—F. BENHRANFIFEEIMNETROEK, ERILEUNEZE THEE
Efr LB mfnb iy Bk, IBHERALRAMGIT, F2020F, hESENEINEE
KRG RIF12.5%, AXEFMIZA, XI—FTHREHORKE=EENEXBEER
HIERA T EHERTIENEERAIEXRE N, mtFetAAHREEHFERKANdreas
Kriesife4£iA A, Eimt AP ERFEHFEIEKETE SR 6E1ER]120%—-30%,

FR Y R il AR R R RE U B 5 B IR RO RN . BIAE, FREIXIERHEE M S Rk
MEE. PERZAARFIEENEAEE—F, AT2EEH “EEiHER” . —B&
EERHEEEF T, TIHHER—RERER, BXEHNEREAMUERERE B M
FERNEESEE. Z3MX, RS AtmX, HRAE, ERRPEKEHITHEER
REEXL, ER. KB S MEFEIREAE, MREPERFEERR, Wt
RN Z TR E—, RERERERMBTERES, BRTEHRLZ,
MEeEHmIPERER, BEEEFHERMERNERER, WiEE. FXA.
BEMRL, PEFEXNERAMEELZEXMBRL, ERMEFEHTIREH
@, twIFFEERTEANBARE (Flifngit ) FERDREANZHEN G
INE, BFEEFEAREZRBRFMHMNNEIR, ER, HE, (KEESELMFEBRE
) BAREMREF. MTFERMAEMS XML ARSI REIT, MK SHHLERE
Em=, KiliFERE0mE ARERTRA— M AETHE)
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Text by Martin Regnet
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Contacts for Switzerland-interested
travellers it FNEX & 53K
Switzerland Tourism China

W ERES

610 Scitech Tower, 22 Jianguomenwai
Dajie Beijing 100004, P.R. China

Mok i NREFEILRHERIMAE
228, Scitechi%610%=

Hi4%: 100004
TelEEiE: +86 10 6512 0974
Faxf£H&: +86 10 6512 0973

Chinesewebsite d132 1it:
www.MySwitzerland.com.cn

Chief RepresentativeBX & A
Zhang Wenjia

email & ff:
wenjia.zhang@switzerland.com

We thank Switzerland tourism for
friendly support !
1o B T B R E R E

Pictures source: Switzerland Tourism
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Ziirich, Geneva and Lucerne. A must.
HRA —ihjl 2 Mt

The most popular Swiss destinations for Chinese travellers are Zirich, Geneva
and Lucerne. The average stay of Chinese guests in Swiss hotels was 1.9 nights
in 2001. The principal types of holidays are city holidays with sightseeing and
shopping mostly done in summer. A new trend is snow holiday in which nearly 75%
of Chinese tourists either ski or learn to ski. Chinese groups are comparatively large.
To welcome the large numbers of new guests, Switzerland Tourism and Hotellerie
Suisse distributes a brochure to all Swiss hotels with information about meeting the
specific needs of the new Chinese clients and to make them feel 100% comfortable
with Swiss hospitality. For example, the provision of Chinese-style food for these
visitors is required. Since the Matterhorn became the sister mountain of the Yulong
Snow mountain in Lijang, Southwest China, its surrounding area is well-promoted
in faraway China.

Tt RIPERERDPETEARE. BREMSER, #H2001F45t, HE
HEERTEEFHEBNEHN1.9X, ERNEERARESHTRNME.
EFEmTBEREERA-—NEHHAS, B75%NFEFESEZHRLBETHES
BE. Exkit, PEBFETHHEMRIX, Bit, ATRERBPENRHIES,
WmTikiERMEENS AR TAERBEERAR T %M, AHEMINRHREX,
HAHREHERSOBIEZMEAGERE, G, APEHREHIEENTXER
%, ENDHHESHTFHEMINELS LER THEKLZE, DEHIERER
WXAERERE T ZHERMXE,

Chinese travellers need a visa to visit Europe. All countries control the inflow of Chinese
by visa application. Therefore, travel agencies plan the itinerary of their tours to Europe
in such a way that the necessary visa applications are facilitated. Swiss visas are
usually issued within three working days, which is very convenient, compared with the
time needed for other countries. Almost all embassies and consulates are situated in
Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou. Travel agencies in other parts of China often receive
assistance in visa application from travel agencies located in these cities, through
payment of fees or commission. If Chinese want to organize the visa for themselves,
they can check the Swiss Embassy’s homepage for the application process and the
necessary preparations at http://www.eda.admin.ch/china_beishan/e/home/visa.html.
The informations are provided in Chinese as well.

Switzerland Tourism approached the Chinese market at the end of 1997 by successfully
coordinating the Switzerland Travel Experience (STE) event, with 17 Swiss partners,
in November 1997 in the 3 largest Chinese cities. One of the outcomes of the event
was the signing of the governmental Tourism Cooperation Memorandum, in January
1998. Switzerland Tourism and the Swiss Embassy cooperate to promote tourism to
Switzerland by holding joint promotion events and workshops.

FEFESENSESIEA RN, FIERNEREET RIESIERES P EFEN
NE, EHik, mRiTHARBE R EREZREIRF RS, BELRAEETRITE TR
HIMRITIR AN TIEZRHE, BIHZIF—E=SANTEARNRTE L, RHiEHMERN
FIEELLRELSENN, 5—FHH, BTREMNHTRKEENMSESRZIALE, k
ERrN, EHit, hEEMATE TR TS E T A AR EEN AN BEX
= KETHRITAL RO EREN, SRAMIIMRFEMERIE, MRDEFEZFEESSMEXIE,
AT BB HEERNE AL ( http:/Avww.eda.admin.ch/china_beishan/e/homefvisa_html )
TERIBREEFMEASITE, HXEBHE R AT HEA,

1997811 A, WmTRFERBS17THRHLTRARAE, NN EPEN=KEHENTEA

“BReImt” BHrES, MAMEXFBRHEANFETG, WAEINEERRZ—, 3
RE1998F1 AXZBHNEFRFSIEETR. BN, HiikiFENGG T XIERERETER
BEEET SRR ER TR ESN LR,
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The Bridge: On September 1, 2004, Switzerland received ADS
(Approved Destination Status) from the Chinese government.
What is the impact on Chinese tourism in Switzerland?

Mr. Sommaruga: Switzerland is very proud to receive ADS from
the Chinese government. There will now be a dramatic increase in
the number of Chinese visitors, which will at least double in a few
years. We expect 500,000 overnights by Chinese visitors by the
year 2010 and by the year 2015 we will hit the 800,000 mark. Thus,
we are very optimistic about future developments.

Is there a change in the variety of Chinese people who
visit Switzerland?

Without ADS, only certain Chinese groups could visit Switzerland.
This included officials, business people, technical visitors or special
invitees. Now people will have the opportunity to visit our country for the
purposes of leisure. There will be medium and large groups of about 5
to 50 persons who realize their “Dream Trip to Europe”. They are very
much looking forward to seeing a great number of places in a relatively
short time. Usually these trips also include visits to several other
European Countries. Apart from Switzerland, the most appreciated by
the Chinese are ltaly and France.

What about Chinese consumer awareness of “Brand
Switzerland”?

Our country is very well-known for its landscapes, its lakes and
for famous cities like Zirich, Geneva, Luzern and Interlaken. On
the other hand, Chinese people love to buy Swiss goods such as
watches, souvenirs or, for example, Swiss army knives. Of course,
they look for shopping opportunities when they travel to Swiss
cities.

Have there been any changes to visa applications for
Chinese tourists since ADS was implemented?

The ADS visa application remains the same. For trips across the
European Union and Switzerland visitors still need the Schengen
AND a Swiss visa. But the good news is that the Swiss embassy
has expedited the process. Now, visitors usually receive their visa
only three days after application.

Interview: Martin Regnet &ij5: {E X
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Pictures source: Switzerland Tourism .

Federico Sommaruga is the Regional
Director for Switzerland Tourism, the
national tourism organization. He is in
charge of South East Asia, including PR
China and Hong Kong.
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China’s 2004 WTO
Commitments:

A Revolution in 2004,

1 ] N\ TRy GE

Progress for Foreign __ 4
Businesses R#

The commitments China made when joining the WTO on December 11,
2001 will have far reaching implications that are difficult to envision. Not only
do they open foreign markets to Chinese products without limits, thereby
confirming China in her position of workshop of the world early in the 21st
Century: China has also committed to allow foreign businesses to be active
in China on an equal footing with Chinese companies in most fields.

The new Foreign Trade Law that comes into effect on December 11, 2004
makes good on this promise. Certain restrictions will remain, among others in
the automotive and service sectors. Yet, in addition to the already welcome
manufacturing operations, foreign companies will be free to conduct trading,
wholesale, retail and after-sales activities practically anywhere in the
country.

The low requirements in registered capital for such activities will allow
niche and smaller players to operate in the ways and structures they do
most efficiently, effectively opening the door of China to any company with
an international potential and improving chances for success of all foreign
enterprises. The legal scope of business that will be granted will be almost
familiar to Western companies.

The two articles of this feature on WTO commitments aim at giving readers
a more practical feel for the changes to come. However, red tape legal
and other administrative hurdles will remain; we would not be surprised if
they are implemented even more strictly. Actually, only regulations on the
implementation of the new Law and early practice will allow a definitive
assessment of how the changes will affect the business environment for
foreign enterprises in China.

THE BRIDGE will collect analysis of these regulations as well as first
implementation practice of the Law in its next editions for practical support
to our readers.

Nicolas Musy
Bdh ER

SwissCham Shanghai, Vice-President

TEmRtIES (LiE) BlERE

/30 ‘ swisscham china

ERELZRNEEZTH

BhShE £l

FEFE2001E 12811 B N\ i 88 48 47 i B 4 HH g &
W, HFENRIZZMm, SHEUTUTH, XLERiE,
AMEFIHH P EER TR, MEHLE
M 7T HEFEAHEMEARRE T Mitfc, B
B, XERELRREERREAXRSHIEA, o
PFAMNE M 5 i E 7R 1 4l 7 B 4 R B Al B iR KR FR AR
KR,

BN4EF2004 12811 HEHIFH (FINEF KD
BH—SRIPEBITEANMERIE, REEFLSE
A, IREMRSL, MAFEE—LRE, B2, B
THEFELFEEHN—ES ASHENEEZN, IMNE
lEIg RS EREE N RS, EENERS,
ik, EESEERENEH,

BEU LSRR ERIARER, BEHEFLLE
RPNAREW T AT S RIFE B SRR ENRFS,
SREAFMIBELR, X—FFEH, BEBAEES
HRERTZEANEEUEFPENKXT, B
HASNE SN ERENRIIAREE T BFHEMG

EXMRRE, BEHAEXHEANKIENXE
BEEEEMER., B MK 2] ix LA B kB
T, AT, AXXHMEMITE ERRERFMNS Y4
S, FAREEMMEMMHIT, Bk, REH
MEREIRAAZENHEHRREN, ARNEESEX
ERFMZEBTURRELISIE LW EFRE~E
(A E3: A U]

H—H () REBRERRNE, BIZFAES
B, #amELEER, FERSTIRE LXRS
R B

WTO Commitments

push through new
Regulations

——

5 T

A great help for small and
medium-sized enterprises
to tackle China’s
commercial sector

SR HitiEz R BB bk
EhEMHILES

BRI
HB{TR A AR

The Measures for the Administration of Foreign Investment in
the Commercial Sector, effective as of June 1, 2004, describes
the rules and regulations for establishing and operating Foreign
Invested Commercial Enterprises (FICEs). It replaces the
Provisional Measures for Foreign Investment by Commercial
Enterprise, promulgated in 1999. These new measures herald
significant changes and are set to have a significant impact on
investment in China’s commercial sector.

Such dramatic moves are largely due to China’s impending WTO
commitments. China is required to fully open its distribution
service sector to the international business community by
December 11, 2004. The government has been keen to protect
its domestic industries, and until recently has controlled imports
and exports tightly. Before June 1, foreign investors were
generally restricted to gaining full trading rights by establishing
a foreign minority joint venture, an import or export company
operating in a legal grey area, or by establishing a trading
company in a free trade zone. However, these options brought
with them numerous requirements, many of which foreign
companies found themselves unable to satisfy.

(OIVEREELTIEEE ML) 20045681 BIEXFBLME,
I EE DRI F A E LS (EINE LB A X &0 Fn M
EFTTHIE, FBR T1999E MMM (SN E L
HEEME) o XEFMEXNPFEFITIEHNRESETEKX
980, XEEF[IFhEIHRALKIENZR S M,

2200412810, PEEMERESHRGETSEFAMES
HoERESHE., T BRRREFERNNIL, H=F
ER#HO, w6 A1HMAE, MEREE—HRNBFUREIL
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The new measures offer far fewer restrictions for foreign investors
wishing to or already trading in China and appear to promote a more
open commercial environment. As a direct consequence of these
changes, China will finally become a truly viable market for many
small and medium-sized foreign companies that are interested in doing
business in the commercial sector.

Unlike the provisional measures, the new regulations begin by fully
defining what ‘commercial activities’ are. A FICE is legally allowed to
conduct retailing, wholesaling, franchising, import/export activities, as
well as act as a commission agent. The new regulations also make
establishing a FICE far easier to achieve. Previously, those wishing to
establish a joint venture commercial enterprise needed to gain approval
from the Ministry of Commerce (MOFCOM) and the National Economic
Training Committee However, since June only the approval of MOFCOM
is required for most foreign-invested commercial enterprises.

Several areas of the regulations

Continuation of page 29: #2971
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deserve mentioning. Firstly, as of Expanded bUS’neSS BRSSP RE LR, X

June 1, 2004, foreign companies

ETHBRERIFINE S

are aIIO\,/ved to’set up majority joint SCOpe With trade and SERtLER—KELE

venture trading companies. The
provisional regulations stipulated that
foreign investors were only allowed
to own up to 65% of a FICE and this
greatly limited foreign investment. In
addition, after December 11, 2004,
foreign investors will be allowed to set
up a wholly owned foreign commercial
enterprise, with its own import and export rights. These changes finally
allow foreign invested commercial enterprises to compete at the same
level as domestic companies.

Secondly, the minimum registered capital requirements for FICE have
been reduced to RMB 500,000 (US$ 60,000) for wholesalers and RMB
300,000 (US$ 36,000) for retailers. This is a dramatic reduction from
the previous amount required - the minimum registered capital for retail
companies was previously RMB 50 million (wholesale RMB 80 million).
With the greatly reduced minimum registered capital requirements
in place, the market has been made far more accessible to smaller
businesses.

Finally, the new measures allow existing foreign-invested enterprises
(FIE), especially those in the manufacturing sector, to expand their
business scope to include trade and distribution. Prior to June 1, 2004,
FIEs could only distribute the products they made in China and were
only allowed to provide aftersales services for these products. Now,
manufacturing FICEs can sell the product lines of their parent company,
as well as those of companies entirely unrelated to them, both foreign
and domestic. In addition, providers of systems integration, after service
and other service providers are now able to sell products alongside their
services. These changes offer fresh opportunities for many companies
already doing business in China.

The Measures for the Administration of Foreign Investment in the
Commercial Sector is not to be underestimated for the effect it will
have on the Chinese business environment. Changes such as those
mentioned above, alter the investment landscape for companies in the
commercial sector, particularly for small and medium-sized enterprises.
The new regulations should be identified as a significant step towards
granting full market access to FIEs.
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Text: Katie Fish
€% . Katie Fish
SJ Grand
Contact BRRA:
kfish@sjgrand.net
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After China’s WTO Accession:
Where do we

go from here?
hEAE, EMNEMMAT?

Cyrill Eltschinger, Vice-Chairman of SwissCham China, shares insights of things to

‘ come in terms of the Chinese economy, future challenges, and the role of foreign
chambers of commerce in China. This article is based on a speech he gave on
September 19, at the WICO summit in Beijing.

BRRTRE, PERTASIER, M THEZFHNIS, AORNEKURINETSER
HETREEBIFER, BERANTH. FAXARBEERKTEETFAATABELREFN
WICOERS I LM A S HEMA -
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® Leads: EU Competitiveness Index '04
2004 MR EFER NN EKHEA
(Robert Huggins Associates)

e 3rd: World Globalization Index ‘04
ZHIHRE= 2004FEZF IS EEkLHER
(A.T. Kearny/Foreign Policy Magazine)

e Zurich & Geneva: ‘World’s most livable’ '04
HRMMBENRL: 2004FHREEEEREERRAES

(Mercer Group)

“Knowledge intensive industries of the 21st century” ’02
“21tHE FREIRFE AT * #8024 Finanical Times. / OECD
(Financial Times/OECD)

The Chinese Economy

The global economy is here and it is here to stay. The electronic media
and internet technologies as well as telecommunications mobility are all
contributing to bringing markets closer together. This is an advantage for the
China market which has begun to truly flex its muscles in the global economy
with the development of a worldwide infrastructure better able to support its
growth. This has already helped to shorten the steps in the development of
the China market, and will continue to do so.

When discussing the Global Economy, one thinks ‘numbers and figures'.
Let's examine Global FDI flows: Looking at the period 2004- 2005 — Asia
leads the pack. And the forecast seems to be the same for the next 2 years.

Looking at the figures for China more specifically, with an emphasis on how
FDI flows have behaved, we can see a formidable FDI inflow into China as
compared to other key markets. In the USA, on the other hand, inward flows
are following a decreasing trend. The contrast with China, which is increasing
and sustaining inflow, is marked.

It should be noted that China is also becoming an important source of direct
investment in the global economy. Economists now forecast that China will
soon displace Japan as the fourth largest source of direct investment into
other countries. All this bodes well for China’s further integration into the
world economy.

Furthermore, Accenture forecasts of a few years ago indicate that Chinese
will be the number one internet language by 2007. In fact, this may happen
earlier. Also by 2010, China is expected to be the largest market for every
product and service in the world.

The Swiss position in the global economy, of course, remains strong.
Switzerland, with a population of just seven million people (half of the
population of Beijing alone), is one of the world’s top 10 economies, with
GDP per capita also in the top 10. It comes as no surprise that Switzerland is
also one of the world’s top 10 foreign investors.

Switzerland
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The Challenges

When examining China’s growth as a WTO member, it is important
to look at the key players, such as SwissCham China, who assist in
this growth. Such organizations help to set up a proper stage and
platform for development and investments. As a result, business is
prepared for the next stage of bilateral economic growth.

As a member of the WTO, China has to face up to a number of key
challenges. Among the primary market concems facing multinationals in
China (as noted by the ADB survey) are over regulation, taxation, local
protection, unfair market competition, IPR, and fake products. Other
challenges stem from poverty, economic restructuring, and inadequate
transportation infrastructure — particularly in central and westem China.

International chambers of commerce are often useful in channelling
the concerns of the foreign business community. They can help to
bridge the gap between foreign and local companies; between
business and government and; between business and the market.

A survey by the ADB found a number of reasons for foreign companies to
have a presence in China. These range from the low cost of local operations
to market potential and to a company’s global strategy. Indeed, it is easily
argued that if a company with global operations or global ambitions is not in
China, then itis not in the game.

Today, this argument is as important for the services sector
as it is for manufacturing. Up to now, many companies have
outsourced their manufacturing to China. Whether it's Nike shoes
or components of a Boeing aircraft there’s a good chance that
much, if not all, of a product, was made in China. But, in the future,
services will be increasingly outsourced to China. This will include
banking and financial services, information technology and other
sectors. Most of the FDI outsourcing to China flows to the coastal
region of the country at present.

Switzerland lies in the heart of Europe. In a future where China
has acceded to the WTO, Switzerland would provide a wealth of
advantages for enterprises looking for the ideal location.
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The Future Role of Foreign Chambers

Chambers of commerce play an important role in terms of advising
their members on where to invest and even in facilitating such
investments. If investment is to start flowing into China’s hinterland,
then the Government has to further embrace the international
chambers of commerce and include them in the drive to bring
foreign direct investment to the interior.

The Chambers can and should be promoting investment in other
parts of China because many provinces have introduced investor-
friendly policies and regulations. They just have to get the word
out.

Chambers of commerce help in the handling of administrative tasks
which facilitate business in China, such as visa processing or the
production of invitation letters for business people wanting to visit
China. In other words, we are not only assisting our membership
but also our host country, China, by making it easier for our
members to enter the market and do business here.

And as China begins to look more outward, searching for
destinations for direct investment overseas, international chambers
of commerce can and do play an important role in facilitating this
outward march. We not only promote investment in our own
countries, we can also help to interpret the regulatory frameworks
and introduce Chinese companies to investment and business
partners at home.

Switzerland should be an important destination for Chinese outward
investment. It is a global banking centre in the heart of Europe
with exceptionally good communications and transportation links
throughout the continent.

Switzerland is both politically and economically stable, with
good growth potential and opportunities for Chinese businesses.
It should be a “no-brainer” (as Americans say) for Chinese
investors.

The future of international chambers in China will depend on the
manner in which important changes are carried out so that they can
play a fuller role in facilitating China’s full integration into the global
economy. After joining the WTO, it does not make sense that China

SwissCham China’s Vice-Chairman Cyrill Eltschinger antici-
pates the future of the foreign chambers in China

HERETESEEFERREGTHFIINEFSETENES LR
Source: WICO

would continue to impose geographic limitations on the foreign
chambers in the country. We would therefore call on the government
to lift these legislative limitations and allow our chambers to open
in cities and provinces outside of Beijing. Opening full international
chambers of commerce in the hinterland of China will certainly help
with the government’s objective of developing the western regions
of the country.

Similarly we would like to see the barriers, which have been
preventing Chinese companies from becoming members, lifted. If
Chinese companies could join the foreign chambers then they and
the Chinese economy would both be beneficiaries of the increased
business that would flow their way. No other foreign country prevents
its companies from joining foreign chambers of commerce. It is
important that China reforms this legislative restriction if it is to take
its rightful place in the global economy, as part of its entry into the
WTO.

The Swiss Chamber is a very active organization that was established
in China more than 9 years ago. In China the SwissCham network is
more than 300 members strong and we are always looking for new
members and new business opportunities for our members.
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A unique micro-coil to allow bigger mobile RAMFHMEE, TREXHBIHAIE

ek A phone screens RE
KUK Electronic AG
follows Client in China —,
KU K %;Q\\'ﬁj EE Iﬁg )i-l ;EEIJ Fl:l EI A China start-up with a first opportunity B2 5 R E

Becoming

the most important Swiss
To Rroduce 50 Mio micro-coilsgyear for COII p.rOducer 'n 15 years
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short description of KUK’s activities }j_] QX.I 5 _ﬁ_-; E/] Z% %
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. . KUK Electronic AG is a highly innovative, family owned, fast growing SME,
For more information: founded in 1990 in Appenzell and employing 70 persons. Activities are of

XFEIFMHAIE R ’ EES): three types:

KUK (China) Co. Ltd B 7048 5 THIRI B FRR 8 F1990F MB35 /R ( Appenzell ) B3z,
BWBFTH (L£iE) BRAF BRI, REMAEH. BEKHTAEL, AFRLFERAT=2:
800 Shenfu Road, Xinzhuang Industry Design and in-house production of i&it#0 RER &£ 7=:

Parr‘lq(, Shanghai 2011_ 08 e printed circuit board assemblies
= i%8005, LiFFEET X 201108 EN Rl B AR B4k

Info@kuk.com.cn

LTR711, bottom view
Source: KUK (China) Co. Ltd.

Expanding in the China market: generating ymammE#iF. mHEtLiEsEE
growth for the Swiss operation

Mobile phone Nokia 6230,
with loudspeaker LTR711
Source: Nokia

specialty electromechanical components, such as custom
miniaturized electromagnets

Swiss Center Shanghai E A RS T AL R ER
Ligm L micro-coils: small copper wire coils of specifically high-requirements

. . and/or particular shapes
o 1070 ang Ning Road BEE: FAESHRABRI () RERHLRN N DALE
anghai 20060

I E&1078515—c, L if§ 200060 In the 15 years of its existence, KUK became the biggest coil winder of
info@swisscenters.org Switzerland.

FE15FHNER, MNEMHI Wmt&EANLE LT,
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About the Swiss China Survey 2004

Preliminary Report

on the Swiss China
Survey 2004
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Many of the big multinational Swiss companies are active in China BREAENKEITEEATNCRKETERESF, [
already for a longer time. With the fast development of China offering & fEZ5FH) K IEB KT —H RN, #k
now a strong actual market potential for most of Swiss export product #HEHIHTATEE THETZHWEXRE S, R
and services as well as excellent opportunities for good quality/price #ZEHETIFHKEKEKILX, ERTERERMEELIHNES,
production, a considerable number of smaller companies ponder a X—iFER{IAEESEREAHEEZIXEE,

China entry. This, however, still implies big uncertainties and risks

mostly due to a lack of resources and knowledge.

Besides, with the accession to the WTO and the resulting far reach-
ing regulatory changes, the existing Swiss players on the China mar-
ket also re-assess trends, opportunities and risks for re-structurings

or further developments

Fig 1:
B Ay P e
ARiaTAEE

=1, F23KIR :

Fig 1: Share of reached goals in of Swiss companies (N=89). s

F1: E BT AR LA (N=89) -
Fig 2.: Trust of Swiss companies to be successful in China =
I Il E BE &

: throughout the coming 3 to 5 years (N=89).
. +®2: AKIESEH, W AREFERNZERELE (N=89) .
: Fig1 and Fig 2 Source: Swiss China Survey 2004
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To support this process, the Swiss Center Shanghai, the Swisscham China, Osec, FELATRT, Ligfwmtdd, FEKLIHS, KR
the Swiss-Chinese-Chamber of Commerce and Seco joint forces together with the {2t H1::(OSEC), WA EKMiE BRI EFLE
Swiss Federal Institute of Technology Zurich to develop and conduct a survey on (SECO), 5% T R EIBRZL K F(ETH) B & LEH

the investment climate and the factors of success for an entry into China. The proj- £H#

—REBEXHPERFREMEIHEN P ETIHH

ect is also supported by the Consulates Generals of Switzerland in Shanghai and & FEEIEE, X—MERMEFE T LiBFEFER LT
Hong Kong, Sofi, Swissmem, most of the cantonal chambers of commerce as well SWEIE, HIRERTZRS(SOFI), ImEHMH

as several private partners and sponsors.

BRAMMS, REHMEFSUR—LFANRFNEH
BHXE, AXAE-FESETHRLEEARE

One of the main goals of the Swiss China Survey 2004 is to establish the trends hE I S AR, B E M e
for China as seen by managers and resulting opportunities as well as the level of iﬁﬂkﬁil}]?ﬁ%ﬂhlﬁﬂi;ﬁﬁ’ﬂf"iﬁ #%iﬁ"ﬁi%lﬁll‘iﬁﬂ

success of Swiss companies in China..

BARARREENERNZEIL

By measuring the success in China from a subjective point of view, the Swiss China e 2 25 258 A B b ZE v E T A B BB R
Survey 2004 aims at identifying successful.companies from which difficulties and = %éiﬂ—?tkﬁilﬂﬂﬁiﬁ“ﬁiﬁi& M1 S IR

L2

factors of success can be analyzed. (The measurement compares the number of AR, BERZE. (EESRIMS AR

goals which have been achieved, the difficulties on the way and the self-assess-

ment of enterprises for future success.)
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First results

This intermediate report presents first results based
on the analysis of the distribution of the answers from
the questionnaires. More than ninety decision mak-
ers from different industries, e.g. machinery, plant
construction and electrotech stated their expecta-
tions, worries and - in case of a finished market entry
- experiences and performances.

The most important reasons in favor of a potential
market entry are the opportunity to improve margins
and the ongoing increase of market entry barriers.
While in the past, low sourcing prices and access
to cheap resources was the main driver for market
entries, today, the trend goes rather to a long-term
orientation and a market penetration to tap most of
the local sales potential.

Among the biggest barriers for market entry in China,
managers mentioned difficulties in finding trustwor-
thy business partners, political risks, which could
have an impact on the stability of the nation and a
rigid bureaucracy. Additionally, the risk of patent viola-
tions was ranked high, as well as the connected risks
of loss of know-how and reputation.

On the other hand, a lack of management resources,
shortcomings of Chinese distribution networks or
under qualified Chinese employees were not con-
sidered as major entry barriers by Swiss companies.
They are also not afraid to lose reputation by being
considered as a cheap producer with bad quality -
management teams seem to feel confident to control
these factors, not like bureaucratic barriers or political
developments.

While the classical factors of success for a China
market entry such as good strategic concepts, smart
action plans, the coordination and optimization of
timing, location, partners and employees are still im-
portant, Swiss companies which are active in China
named a few other relevant points which especially
apply for China: The support of the local Govemn-
ment, the understanding of local rules and regula-
tions, the Chinese consumers’ sensitiveness about
price-quality relations , the necessity of effective
distribution channels as well as the rising importance
of after-sales services.

This report is a preliminary summary of the most im-
portant results of the Swiss China Survey 2004. The
final analysis will be available by end November - at
no cost for participants in the survey.

The Swiss China Survey to support China Entry
and operations of Swiss Companies

Based on the results of the Swiss China Survey
2004 an analysis will be developed to support Swiss
companies throughout their set-up and operation in
China by identifying relevant check-lists and case
studies of companies which successfully mastered

comparable situations in similar fields, according to
situational and industry specific factors.

Additionally, the results will help to optimize the
allocation of Swiss tax payers’ money to support
Swiss companies in foreign growth markets and
particularly China. Text: Juergen Simon.
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Participate in the Swiss China Survey 2004 for valuable results to your company and top
management: http://swisscham.concepto.ch/survey/. (3#%+2004EEHFERE ) HES5ETET
I lahttp://swisscham.concepto.ch/survey/3k B E £ £ &{E 8.,

For more information please directly con-
tact the project management team via
email entrytool@CH-ina.com or by tele-
phone 021 6266 0844 ext 223. Please also
contact the project management if you are
interested in placing an ad in the official
final report. It is still possible to participate
in the Swiss China Survey 2004 via http:
/Iswisscham.concepto.ch/survey/.

ERBEHANGER, BEESMBEESA
BEZ, HBfEMuE: entrytool@CH-ina.com E
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Switzerland. In the past, Precision AG has used a Chinese import / export company in
Shanghai for importing into China, while yet another local agent handled distribution.
In addition, after-sales service, namely repairs and exchange of parts for the precision
tools, was taken care of by an affiliated company of the distribution agent. Precision AG
had also previously set up a Rep Office in Guangdong which, in the past, was used as
a coordinating unit for the operations in China. This setup naturally implied complicated
payment structures, a substantial amount of paperwork, and a high reliance on several
Chinese partners and their operations. Obviously, the structure was not in line with the
setups used in Europe and the US, where Precision AG has subsidiaries (100% owned
by Precision AG) entrusted with all aspects of local operations (though still relying on
local dealers for some parts of distribution). Incidentally, in the future, our typical Swiss
company has plans to start manufacturing in China. This will initially entail producing
parts and assembling some of the machines, and later possibly manufacturing entire
product lines.

Phase |: cCurrently, Precision AG still manufactures most of its products in
/\/ Chima Struciure Bad o

Practical Consequences

of the new Measures regarding
Commercial Enterprises

fe Mz £ ol FF AR SE R SEBRE X

Having heard of the recent legal changes and the impending liberalization in the
commercial sector in China, Precision AG now wants to integrate its currently dispersed
market presence in China, establish full equity (and therefore higher operational
control), and lay the foundation for future manufacturing within China on a gradually

The past few months have seen a plethora of articles increasing scale.
and f:omments on t_he Measures fo_r the Administration of %M. BT Precision AGUITERE 4 HA ZE =5, TEPrecision AGH
el IR I €0 CETTMETE El DEE e [FEOCEFRElE AL BHRERHOA TSRS OB RE, MBS — 5 REE R
article in this issue), and common sense suggests that the & N, EERS, DETSTANEENEREE, HEEHPLRATIE,
new regulations will indeed have an impact on foreign Precision AGIABITE FRiEiZ TREBLBUMBAEFEMNZE, INMVHEBRAEKRSE
players in China. But what does it all mean for the everyday SRMEHEN, BEENBETE, HESERB—Eh S EEREEE, BMHE
operations of a foreign-invested enterprise (“FIE”)? N, REMREARMLEEEANEN, I EPrecision AGEEFAR (AHZ
TEILNAF (M EHREFHLTEBEEREME) ELFHR T KEXEM HHPrecision AGHE ) , MFARHENAETMWA LAMEAENIEE ( BEANER
LT o EIRSIFFRATIX LRI E 45 X3 72 B 34T L ZiE sh RS E EFHNHEETEHEER TR ZER ) . DHE, ZE2HWERLTAREITIERE
AFEEENZN (RAPRS—BXE) . BEEMNIEERFILVH FEFREF, IEMEFSHHARTENR, KETREFENTTRE,
AEEEERETAR? FATHEREFERETM U RBIENELSERRIF, Precision AG HEFREBTE
EFREBNSHN TR EEESESR, EI12BFAR, NMRABESEENEZER

The following - only partially fictitious - case study of a Swiss medium-sized FIHARREPEBENEFITTEM, BEEIENERSREEZ L.

enterprise shall convey in layman’s terms what the future may hold for many of

the Swiss companies already present in China. The case study centers on a TR Phase IlI: In the very near future, after December 2004, Precision AG can

Swiss precision-tool manufacturer, hereinafter called “Precision AG”. Precision China Structure Afler | achieve all of the above by establishing one single, wholly foreign-owned

AG has exported its products to China in the past and would now like to further
consolidate, expand its sales, and especially strengthen its distribution and

subsidiary (“WFOE”"), with the following characteristics: a reasonable minimum
i i ) Pragiais AD capital of RMB 500,000, a business scope including import of its own products
service structure in China. e WEOE from Switzerland, manufacturing of its products within China, direct import of

In a nutshell, the new regulations will allow Precision AG to normalize its import
and distribution setups in China, to bring them into line with existing company
policies and practices as already applied in other (mature) markets such as
France, Germany, and the US - where Precision AG has been able to gather
experience in foreign markets.

THEHEXERLTHEMCWHEGNSHT (REDS2EMR ) BUIEEERIERE
TREEFEAENHE T AT URSETAENERK, MRS HTELE—1
BB Z TEHAFRE, @A “Precision AG” EBF., Precision AGEEiE
HERHOZREHFBHNERE#H—SHES. FRXEWHEE, 32 MmETE
TERER S SHFARR S S5

BME 2, HMEERFPrecision AGHSEEX S ERHOMAEHAE, 2

FEUGFEHNATIBRNECREENEE. EE. EEXHERHEM (L) T
BHIIRE #5% — Precision AG BE2EMEME THNETIH LHZRE,
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related products from other manufacturers, distribution to dealers as well as to
customers of all of the above and, finally, after-sales services (repair, maintenance,
upgrades) not only for its own products, but also for related products from third-
party manufacturers (CNC, drills, testing equipment etc.).

In other words, Precision AG will have a 100% subsidiary in China capable of
performing nearly the entire range of services commonly expected from such an
affiliated company in more mature markets, including manufacturing, import and
export of products - including products from third parties - local distribution, and after-
sales services.

FME: EAXRIESR, 20045E12B 25, Precision AG BT r— 1 EE T4
EREIMEFTAT (SMELN ) AT EEHNER: RIK5077 T ARMTAERE
x, BELEESRE: AmtHOcacHT R, EHFEEFEFSR, EEMEMETR
HOMX~R, AEEEAREEEMENRATR, REEECTRUEREE=F%
RS (CNC, T=Hl, MiXiE&E%E ) EBRS (1838, %, B ) .

A&, Precision AG EHREME S ZBRE— N EEMR AN HIZPEEBHITE
ERBTHNILFEEEMNRSEENTFAR, aFfiE. #HO0~R (8FEF=5
BEm) . hAEHEFERRS,
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Disclaimer: Please note that this article
serves informational purposes only and
is not intended to provide legal advice.
For legal advice on PRC Law please
contact a registered PRC lawyer.

Al EER, AXEEIRBERZA
MAREERMERRN . XTHEZEEN
REREBIFE & T EEM R,
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Phase lll: In addition, once Precision AG achieves a substantial size of operations
and revenues with and within China, the basic structure may be refined and consolidated
to accommodate further operational needs and to increase financial efficiency. At
a later date, Precision AG may decide to separate the functions of manufacturing
(including after-sales services) and import and distribution, into two or even three
separate entities, all of them 100% foreign-owned. Such separation of entities will
allow the manufacturing entity to benefit from certain tax and other incentives which
are only available to pure manufacturing companies, but not to companies with a more
diverse business scope. Further, and just as important, a more complex structure can
then allow the Swiss precision tool manufacturer to fine-tune operations by providing
intra-group services, therefore issue intra-group invoices for management and other
service fees, provide intra-group consignment, possibly even intra-group short-term
credit facilities, etc., all within China. As a consequence, and since all entities are
wholly foreign-owned, all of these activities will at all times be under the full control of
the headquarters of Precision AG in Switzerland.

The several and separate entities will most likely be domiciled in different locations
within China, according to their respective business scope. Such domiciles shall allow
the group to enjoy separate and more appropriate benefits and other investment
incentives available throughout China and its miscellaneous special economic or free
trade zones. Again, the rationale of the new structure under the new regulations will be
to maximize flexibility and to minimize related costs, thus increasing profitability.

F=FE: #H, —BPrecision AGHERHEENINEFREEXNILSIEBAUNEE
BN, WA EMTEREMEN, UMEBERRRKNEEEK, BEMSHE,
#J5, Precision AGHLUREBFIEINEE (EFERKRS ) MO, D5EINEED LK
Y, EE=MMIHEE, £BRAMERERN, XHENEED LB EHREN
HEBRNERTFAFESL, MAEATEESHEELEN AT ZEZNEER
MEMERER, FH, EATENZE, —MEAEXNEHTERLHEZEIE
FEHETEANRSFKAREZE, hit, HEEEMEMRSEAENERRNET
e, REEARNTIHNEDNRT, EEEGTHREHEARNTEHER, £%, X
LA ILERERNIBER. Bk, ATFHRELEHIIEMRESN, EEMEERMET
BEER AT LLEPrecision AGIE Tt AN T L RIEZ T,

AWM SSEERUTRREMNSENELEERIEFENARMCE, XEHR
EMEFFESEAZZMIMN. EMESMASEMEMEBER PEREZMEFHEX
FEAASXARBIN., I, FIEMETHEN, FEHMNEREBEIZERE
ERUEXL, EEXEREGUR/NML, NMREFHE,

WENGER VIELI BERSER

~ It ERINESItEAELL

Nathan Kaiser is a Senior Associate with the Swiss law firm Wenger & Vieli.
For further information and contact, please visit the website: www.wenfei.com.
Nathan Kaiser 2+ 3 £/ ITE KT S REIT,

H—H RS EFERER, EX MY www.wenfei.com

Central Government Offices FREFFHIAE

China Insurance Regulatory Commission (CIRC)
FEREEEEEZRS + 86 10 6621 0188

General Administration of Customs

hEEXEE +861065194114

General Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine
(AQSIQ) EXRREREKESS +861064191114

Ministry of Foreign Affairs (MOFA)

HRE SN A +86 106596 1114  www.fmprc.gov.cn
Ministry of Commerce (MOFCOM)

R E E &S EB +86 1065197325  www.mofcom.gov.cn
Ministry of Information Industry (MIl)

FEE S AR +86 10 6601 4249  www.mii.gov.cn
Ministry of Science and Technology (MOST)

hERZERARER +86 10 6851 5544  www.most.gov.cn
National Bureau of Statistics

EXR4itH +86 10 6857 3311  www.stats.gov.cn

National Development and Reform Commission (NDRC)
ExXXEBINERRS +86 10 6850 1240  www.sdpc.gov.cn

State Administration of Foreign Exchange (SAFE)
ERINCEEF + 86 10 6840 2255

State Administration for Industry and Commerce (SAIC)
EXI@THERR + 86 10 6803 2233

State Administration for Taxation (SAT)
ERBEEE +86 106341 7114

State Asset Management Commission (SAMC)
EERFLUEEEERS +86 10 6319 3569

State Intellectual Property Office (SIPO)
E R MIAFHS +86 10 6209 3114

Chinese Government Websites FREEFFE 77 Mk
Beijing Foreign Economic and Trade Commission

EHIEE
Beijing International Investment Promotion Council
RERERRHEERS

China Economic Information

www.tpbjc.gove.cn

www.fdibeijing.org.cn

FEZFFHE www.cei.gov.cn
State Economic and Trade Commission, PRC
EXREZFRASERS www.setc.gov.cn

Swiss contacts

SwissCham Beijing FEx LT H&--t=E

20/F Star City Tower C, 10 Jiuxiangqgiao Road 100016 Beijing
R HEAPAR B L2105 B3 E FR20ECEE 100016 Jb 5

Tel BifE: + 86 10 64322020
Fax f£&: + 86 10 64323030
Email EFEB:  info@bei.swisscham.org

www.bei.swisscham.org

FiFr O
imi

Photo source: WICO.

SwissCham Beijing Board Members It REESHM R

Cyrill Eltschinger, President

BIRET, B

Tel BiE: + 86 10 6599 2288
Email B3 ce@ituc.com
Zhang Hu, Vice-President

KEE BB

Tel BiE: + 86 10 8049 0472

Email BR{: zhanghu @bjlem.com.cn

Dr. Manfred Streuber, Vice—President

SEEAE, Bl A

Tel B1E: + 86 10 6561 3988 Ext. 111
Email BEB4: manfred.streuber @ dksh.com

James Chen, Secretary General

FRER, K

Tel BBiE: + 86 10 6788 6200 Ext. 103
Email BRfE: james.chen @sig.biz

Olivier Glauser, Director of the Board & Treasurer
BNEEEFHRAE

Tel BBiE: + 86 10 8529 6529 Ext. 261
Email #E{5: oglauser@qualcomm.com

Edgar Doerig, Honorary Board Member,
HIRT, SEEER
Tel BiE: + 86 10 6532 2736 38

Email BB edgar.doerig @bei.rep.admin.ch
Swiss Embassy / Swiss Business Hub Beijing
b N
WmtE&RE#ERL bR
Sanlitun, Dongwujie 3 100600 Beijing
ZEHRAHIS

100600 JtI=
Tel BBiE: + 86 10 6532 2736

( no visa questions will be answered #37< [B1 & 21 &) 8 )
Fax f£&: + 86 10 6532 4353

Email B4 Vertretung @bei.rep.admin.ch

Switzerland Tourism F+1HE

Tel/BiE: + 86 10 6512-5427
Fax/fe&: + 86 10 6512-0973
Website/M1it: www.MySwitzerland.com

Swiss Society Beijing lt s+ ih<&
info@ssbj.org www.ssbj.org
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Useful Contacts in Shanghai

il ERBRENN

SwissCham Shanghai HEHK+H&-- Liff
Floor15-C, 1078 Jiang Ning Road, 200060 Shanghai
LiEHITT 107851584 CEE 200060 ki

Tel EEi&E: + 86 21 62761171

Fax fE&E: + 86 21 62760819
Email/EEFERE:  info@swisscham.org

NOVUS ATLAS SINENSIS

SPECIAL
YEAR-END BENEFIT

A Fantastic Gift for the Office, Your Family,

SwissCham Board Members in Shanghai LiBEESHK R
Zhanbing Ren

Director, President TERIHEMEEAEERE Friends Cust d Asszociates!
fEak, £k Swiss Club Shanghai b i55+{8 5 &8 Facsimile Limited Edition [ R s B it
-Igelm%a;ﬁﬁ'@,lﬂﬂ' :hzisilsz:(gsbiistgroup com www.swissclubshanghal.com ; Pﬂ“m? - "hlﬁhmﬂr;m“ . M b& P i RMB ﬂﬁﬂ
Christian Guertler, Chairman Swiss Cham China info@swissclubshanghal.com P .-. SWIchEI“- = H EmM ; I;t:E‘. D I RME ¥ -T 3[][1
R, EFE Swiss Consulate General in Shanghai / Swiss Business Hub Shanghai on-iviembers: nly '
Tel HIE: + 86 21 2890 9661 mTHEBAMSEE/ RETEFREPD L
E-mail R : guertier@online.sh.cn 22F, Bldg. A, Far East International Plaza, No. 319, 200051 Shanghai MDC L“-j - 1 655
Nicolas Musy FiETHIIERK3195 R ERR HAE224%, 200051 LifF
Director, Vice—E’resident Opening hours/ TAER ] : MM IV = 20{}4
st - B, BIER fromMo—Fr9— 12 am/A—ZERE LFIRZE125
TelE1E: + 86 21 6266 0844 / 45 .

. . Phone EiE: + 86 21 6270 0519 - 21
E-mail B2 H#p: n.musy @ch-ina.com

- Fax f£H: +86 21 6270 0522

Robert Heiniger Email BT hB{4: Vertretung @ sha.rep.admin.ch

Director, Treasurer

EHEMNS, 11 5EE o
Tel BiE: + 86 21 5867 2200 Ext: 269 Useful Con,tzc.ts Worldwide
E-mail 3 Hp: robert.heiniger @ cibasc.com éﬁk E;H—ﬁ*}l*ﬂ

Daniel Heusser
Director, Event Officer
BiET, S5ES

Swiss Business Council in Hong Kong
G.P.O. Box 9501

-

o g b &
. Hong Kong _m, = 7
Tel BBifE: + 86 21 6240 8882 N . - i A £ e
E—mail FHp: d.heusser@virtuarch.net §;§m‘ﬂ'§ﬁ”ﬁﬁ95m? - — # - 'h..,, e
- Tel B3 + 852 2524 0590 o A { ) e =%

Philippe Zwahlen Fax f£2: + 852 2522 6956 b N I~ B g P
Director, Secretary Email B8 FEB: swissbiz @ netvigator.com - m t b r_-'i,'.
EE'@, b &: ' = . ..1 ’
Tel HiF: + 86 21 6266 0844 / 45 Swiss Chinese Chamber of Commerce--Switzerland = - :
E—mail 2 #p: p.zwahlen @swisscenters.org hEREtTHS -+
Patrick R. Scheibli Hoschgasse 83, . 2 3
Director, Event Officer CH-8008 Zurich, Switzerland, Nﬂuus ﬂt!as Slnensls E 16?:::' ﬁiﬁ Dﬂtﬁd 1655. thE’ ND'H'I.IE AHE-E
BiLF, 2 5EF Tel B3E: +4114213888 EEFFHENPEBE, EE88— Sinensis is the first Western Atlas of
Tel BBifE: + 86 21 5887 2316 F . 411 421 38 89 E3 e . ; "

7 e e e ehtoshanahal e $IT4R R E RS I+ A AT 4R China, Published in Europe. The
E—mail F #B: patrick.scheibli@fracht-shanghai.com Email/Fe T lp: info@scce.ch q:l@:r ﬁ -ﬁ“ﬁ}ﬂ']ﬁgm

LY (] v " Kl

Franc Kaiser www.scce.ch - o Facsimile Contains 1 Map of China &
Director, Service Officer P
%.Iéﬁ HE’L%Eé% I Swiss Consulate General in Hong Kong 43t %t 840 54E 15 Provincial Maps.
Tel FEi&: + 86 21 5298 1806 EXxt :623 Suite 6206-07, Central Plaza,18 Harbor Road, Wanchai a
E-mail E2 #p: fkaiser @fiducia—china.com Hong Kong
Jonathan Selvadoray §%i§ﬁ%i¥i§18%—4112‘\1"1%6206—073 SWI s S c a m -or
Director, Public Affairs Officer Tel BT +852 25227147 ;
sk, AHELEE Fax f£H&: + 852 28452619
Tel BiE: +86 21 6289 6363 Email B8 FHBH: S\A/li_;s;gv@r;ont.rep.zj:in.ch o iﬁiﬂuﬁmnp ﬁ iﬁ% - Call SwissCham Now
E-mail E3H#p: jonathanselvadoray @ hotmail.com orig eriretung@hon.rep.admin.c , R .
Sandro Wil FEEAIEEA, BREEIT | Reserve Your Facsimile(s). Limited Stock !
Director, Membership Officer General Information 4t
HZE SfbREE www.swissinfo.org R )
Tel B3E: + 86215951 5187 Ext :22 www.switzerland.com.cn 3t ﬁ-ﬂ&l}lnﬂ _I:ﬁ—EhEthHI
E—mail F8 ff: sandro_willi @ luwa.com.cn www.admin.ch (Swiss Government website T+ BUFF Mz ) BiEMel, +86-10-6432-2020 BiETel: +A8-21-8276-11T1

H-FiEHremail: infoi@bei swisscham, org - fifemail; infoi@sha swisscham.ong
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